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General Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
and associates are principally engaged in manufacturing and
trading of automotive components, securities dealing and
investment, provision of securities brokerage services and
investment holding as referred to Notes 18 and 19 respectively.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the following new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), for the first time of the current year’s financial
statements, the adoption of these new and revised standards and
interpretations has no material effect on these financial statements.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease
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Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The principal changes in accounting policies are as follows:

(@ HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

(i Amendment for financial guarantee contracts

This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS 39
to require financial guarantee contracts issued that
are not considered insurance contracts, to be
recognised initially at fair value and to be remeasured
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in the accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
The adoption of this amendment has had no material
impact on these financial statements.

(ii) Amendment for the fair value option

This amendment has changed the definition of a
financial instrument classified as fair value through
profit or loss and has restricted the use of the option
to designate any financial asset or any financial liability
to be measured at fair value through the income
statement. The adoption of this amendment has had
no material effect on the financial statements.

(i)  Amendment for cash flow hedge accounting of
forecast intragroup transactions

This amendment has revised HKAS 39 to permit the
foreign currency risk of a highly probable intragroup
forecast transaction to qualify as a hedged item in a
cash flow hedge, provided that the transaction is
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into that transaction
and that the foreign currency risk will affect the
consolidated income statement. As the Group
currently has no such transactions, the amendment
has had no material effect on these financial
statements.

(b) HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease

This interpretation provides guidance in determining whether
arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting
must be applied. This interpretation has had no material
impact on these financial statements.
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2.

Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 7

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HKAS 23 (revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007)

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2007)

Operating Segments (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009)

Scope of HKFRS 2 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 May 2006)

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June
2006)

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
November 2006)

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
March 2007)

Service Concession Arrangements
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2008)

Borrowing costs (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is
not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on the results of
operations and financial position.
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Principal Accounting Policies

(@)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets and other financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried
at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2007. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The result of subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances
within the group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests shown in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated balance sheet represent
the interests of outside shareholders not held by the Group
in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries,
respectively.

() Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power
or issued share capital or controls the composition
of its board of directors; or over which the Company
has a contractual right to exercise a dominant
influence with respect to that entity’s financial and
operating policies.
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3.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. This method involves allocating the cost of
the business combinations to the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. The results of
subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statements to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. Interests in subsidiaries are stated in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any impairment
losses.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group is in a
position to exercise significant influence through
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any identified impairment losses. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceed its
interest in that associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the interests in
associates are treated as non-current assets and
stated at cost less any impairment losses. The results
of associates are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - %

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historic cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of fixed assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of fixed assets and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of fixed assets to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The annual rates used for
depreciation are as follows:

20% to 33.3%
20% to 33.3%

25%
20% to 33.3%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount of the asset
was greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the assets is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant assets.
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3.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary or an
associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially
recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost less any impairment losses. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately. Goodwill
on acquisition of associates is included in interests in
associates. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting
date and whenever there is an indication that the cash
generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired
such goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss on goodwill is recognised in the
consolidated income statement and is not reversed in
subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary
or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the calculation of profit or loss on
disposal.

Impairment of assets other than goodwill

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and tested annually for impairment and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairments loss, if any. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash generating unit’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a decrease in the revaluation reserve.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for that asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
an increase in the revaluation reserve.

Investments and other financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determined
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluated this designation at the balance sheet date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. Assets in this category are
measured at fair value classified as current assets if
they are either held for trading or are expected to be
realised within twelve months of the balance sheet
date. Gains or losses on investments held for trading
are recognised in the income statements.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statements when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised in income statement
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets in listed or unlisted equity securities,
that are designated in this category or are not
classified in any of the other categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value with gains or losses being
recognised as a separate component of equity until
the financial assets are derecognised or until the
financial assets are determined to be impaired at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is included in the income statement.

(ii)
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities and
debt securities cannot be reliably measured because
the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that financial asset, or the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The fair value of financial assets that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close
of business at the balance sheet date. For financial
asset where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument, which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
models.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the
equity investment is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity investment
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not reverse in subsequent periods. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such equity
investment is recognised directly in equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of
the guarantee for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. The company does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date by
comparing its net liability regarding the financial guarantee
with the amount that would be required if the financial
guarantee would result in a present legal or constructive
obligation. If the liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is
recognised in the income statement immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) sales of goods is recognised when the Group
delivered products to the customer, or when the
significant risk and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer.

(i) interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, using the effective interest method.

(i) dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment has been established.

(iv)  dealing in securities and sales of investments, on the
transaction dates when the relevant contract notes
are exchanged or the settlement dates when the
securities are delivered.

(v) commission income is recognised when services are
rendered.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

1)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity. Current tax assets and liabilities for the
current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities.

Deferred income tax was provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arose from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affected
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax was determined using tax rates that
are enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset was realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit would be available
against which the temporary differences could be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on interests in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(k)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Employee benefits

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and Japan participates
in the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by respective local governments under the law of the
countries in which the subsidiaries operate. The subsidiaries
are required to make monthly contributions at rates
prevailing in the relevant law on the employees’ monthly
salaries.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries operate defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“Ordinance”). The
Ordinance requires both the company and the employees
to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly gross earnings
with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The contributions
payable by the Group to the scheme are charged to the
income statement.

3.

FESFHHBE ©)
(k) BE

fis) R B 1 3 4 2 S 51 BB ADATE 33
EZER > MxFEGAEEHARKRER
MLASEAE - BERISWRER - B
HRENTSE[RFRESR -

MTAFEBEXN - RBEMER 2SR
REMBEEHMBZAKAXNEE R
ZBE - AREREMSI BT RREL
BEtARSRAZBEKS -

& B &R

REE 2R B AR E R BREfER
RARDEXEHBATEIR 2 BERKE
Fatdl - B ARARBEEEREZE
B AFH XS AERHR -

EAMBRRREBEESRFERESTE
16190 (T Il ) 38 1 78 B8 BOR IR 48 B 5
gl - KPR E R RIEEBERKELES
BRBWAS%ZER = LRATA
1,000 7T © sr 8| A EEAEBMEAERBE Y
EEZESHHATE - AEEREMTEZ
HEFRRRESRING ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 2k 3R T =t

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=—ELZE+F=HA=+—HILFEF

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(m)

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date by external valuer, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted.

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in
which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sales.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable made under
operating leases are expensed in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

E= o

R RR S
BYTREZEBREATERZAREEK
A MEEAZERREEITSHEEIEMN -
NFERR L B H RN EM S E E R
B IR RE TR IR Z AR R NG RT = ©

REBAY BRSAZLZEETNUA
B URRERBB2BRERE  ME
Naﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬂﬁaﬂﬁ HEE R BE B AR

RERMDTER B BB G082
fERERSN o

ﬁf‘éj}yzﬁ

BREZRERE RILEEMFEEE

REFEA TARARERERIHEZEE
ZREERATAERLIN  BERAHE

EAZ WHEERSERER -

REHE

fin B EEFT A #E 2 B R HB 73 [l B K (31 R T e
ﬁ%ﬂ)\ﬁdﬁ*‘ CHEBEER A EH
8- REHERTENESREEHANA
BEAVERTARERA -

GG M 2002/900¢ Hodey [enuuy



56  carico Holdings Limited # /5 & RR &G R A 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 35 #R = BT =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

3.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand, cash
at banks and demand deposits which are readily convertible
into know amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and
demand deposits which are not restricted as to use.

Foreign currency translations

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of theses
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date,
and their income statement are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are included in the
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in the exchange
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=—ELZE+F=HA=+—HILFEF

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

()

Foreign currency translations (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows or at an approximation thereto, the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (a) controls, is controlled by, or is under
the common control with, the Group; (b) has an
interest in the Group that give it significant influence
over the Group; or (c) has joint control over the Group;

(i) the party is an associate;
(i) the party is a jointly controlled entity;

(iv)  the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) to (iv);

(vij  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)  the party in a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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4.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historic experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group made estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period are discussed below:

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment losses. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charge for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovation.
Management will change the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different from the previously estimated lives.
It will also write-off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(c) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group used a variety of methods and made
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each balance sheet date. Other techniques, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

(©)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities
for disclosure purpose is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Net realisable value of inventories estimation

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling and distribution costs. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations at each balance sheet date.

Impairment loss for loans to associates and
amounts due from subsidiaries estimation

The impairment loss for loans to associates of the Group
and amounts due from subsidiaries is based on the
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of the debts
and on managements’ judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each associate. If the
financial conditions of the associates were to deteriorate,
resulting in their ability to make payments, additional
impairments may be required.

Share-based payment transactions

In determining the total expenses for the Group’s equity
compensation plans, the Group estimates the number of
share options that are expected to become exercisable at
the date of grant. At each balance sheet date before the
share options that are become exercisable, the Group will
revise the total expenses where that number of share options
that are expected to become exercisable are different to
previously estimated.
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5.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. The management
monitors the relative foreign exchanges positions of its
assets and liabilities and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by maintaining sufficient cash available.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover represents net invoiced value of goods sold or service
provided, less sales returns and discount, gross proceeds from
securities dealings and trading, commission on provision of
securities brokerage services.

Segment information is presented by way of business segment
as the primary segment reporting format and geographical
segment as the secondary segment reporting format.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations. The Group’s
business segments represent different strategic business units
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other business segments. In respect of geographical
segment reporting, revenue is based on the location of customers,
and assets and capital expenditure are based on the location of
assets.

(@) Primary reporting format-business segments

In the current year, the Group discontinued its operation in
trading of electronic components business. Accordingly, the
consolidated income statement and presentation of certain
items in the financial statements of last year have been
restated to comply with the relevant requirements.

Descriptions of the business segments are as follows:

(i) the manufacturing and trading of automotive
components business;

(i) the securities investment segment includes dealings
in securities and trading of investments;

(i) the securities brokerage segment provides securities
brokerage services; and

(iv)  the “Others” segment comprises principally the
distribution of television programmes, the provision
of logistics services and other trading businesses.
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(@)

6. Turnover and Segment Information Continved) 6. EXHBEEPBEER @
Primary reporting format-business segments (@ FEZHFAX-—ZFBHo8R @
(Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s segment information by business AEBzBREMREBHBEI S 2D
segments is set out as follows: U
f For the year ended 31 March 2007 \
HEZSSLECR=t-ALEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BELERR FEEEEH
Manufacturing
and trading of
automotive Inter- Trading of
components Securities Securities segment electronic
BEREE  investment  brokerage Others elimination Sub-total | components  Consolidated
RETH Bshe B5EL i PEERH Mt | REETEH GARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TR TR FiEn TR FiEn FiEn T#n
Revenue B
- External - i 10,473 112,691 1,023 6,448 - 130,635 - 130,635
- Internal - R - - 24 - (224) - - -
10,473 112,691 1,247 6,448 (224) 130,635 - 130,635
Segment results nEEE (11,967) 142 (2,393 (1,838) - (16,056) (318) (16,374)
Unallocated group kA REBERE
expenses (22,567) - (22,567)
Finance costs BHER (3) - 4
Impairment of loans # FE& A&
to associates 2 (393) - (393)
Loss before taxation [ 7% 3 %4 (39,019) (318) (39,337)
Taxation HE (80) - (80)
Loss before b GEY 3
minority interests  FIE# (39,099) (318) (39,417)
Minority Interests ~ DEIREE S 6,873 - 6,873
Loss for the FAAREHAA
year attributable i EREE
to equity holders
of the Company (32,226) (318) (32,544)
Segment assets NEERE 20,061 5,165 17,274 3,736 - 46,236 - 46,236
Unallocated AR 115,194 - 115,194
Total assets EE4E 161,430 - 161,430
Segment liabilities HE&%E (7,804) (5,064) (7,125) (5,667) 15,600 (10,060) M) (10,071)
Unallocated FOR (819) - (819)
Total liabilities ffE4E (10,879) 1) (10,890)
Capital expenditure  E&F % 784 - 1,317 3% - 2,136 - 2,136
Unallocated AR 111 - 11
Total capital BERET
expenditure 2,241 - 2,241
Depreciation fiE 1,825 - 266 264 - 2,355 - 2,355
Unallocated AR 22 - 292
Total depreciation ~ 4#iE k 2,647 - 2,647




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R e Bl =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information (Continved) 6. EXBEERPEER @
(@) Primary reporting format-business segments @ FEEHMHIX-—ZEBOE®
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2006 (Restated)
HE_ZTRE-A=+t—HLEE(EY)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RECEE BIFEEET
Manufacturing
and trading of
automotive Trading of
components electronic
BEREE Others Sub-total | components  Consolidated
ABETH Hith Nt |EBEESTEH DAYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FAT TAEL THET
Revenue ON 1,381 1,368 2,749 13,649 16,398
Segment results NEEE (3,109) (9,397) (12,506) (17,475) (29,981)
Unallocated group expenses APREBRAX (16,152) = (16,152)
Finance costs BKER (600) - (600)
Impairment on goodwill of associates & 72 B &R (E (25,479) = (25,479)
Impairment on loans to associates % FE R RIERZRE (4,667) - (4,667)
Share of loss of associates FEEEE DR B (1,717) - 1,717)
Loss before taxation BR BT AT (61,121) (17,475) (78,596)
Taxation B - - -
Loss before minority interests Rt L BRE A
B (61,121) (17,475) (78,596)
Minority interests D HR R 1,460 - 1,460
Loss for the year attributable AARERFEAAEE
to equiity holders of the Company FREE (59,661) (17,475) (77,136)
Segment assets ABEEE 23,494 3,278 26,772 12,167 38,939
Interests in associates AUNGL 393 - 393
Unallocated ADE 40,601 = 40,601
Total assets BELE 67,766 12,167 79,933
Segment liabilities HEEE (3,950) (312) (4,262) (10) (4,272)
Unallocated ADE (780) = (780)
Total liabilities BEES (5,042) (10) (5,052)
Capital expenditure BARX 843 1,043 1,886 = 1,886
Unallocated ADE 1,197 = 1,197
Total capital expenditure BERRY 3,083 - 3,083
Depreciation e 192 142 334 450 784
Unallocated ADE 352 = 352
Total depreciation e 686 450 1,136
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R = B =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

(b)

6. Turnover and Segment Information continuveq) 6. EXFEETEER @)
Secondary reporting format-geographical b) REZHAN RS
segments
An analysis of the geographical segments is set out as AEBzEBRMWESFE D 250
follows: T
( 2007 \
—EELE
Hong Kong PRC Overseas Consolidated
& Gl iz FEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THET FTHExT THET
Revenue PN 121,357 1,980 7,298 130,635
Segment assets NEEE 125,107 31,981 4,342 161,430
Capital expenditure &A% 1,463 784 - 2,247
2006
—EERF
Hong Kong PRC Overseas Consolidated
BB 3l pisZel\ ORI
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FH&IT FHIT FHIT
Revenue KA 1,177 14,779 442 16,398
Segment assets DEREE 45,061 34,479 = 79,540
Interests in associates B & A Al 393 - - 393
Total assets BEMBE 45,454 34,479 - 79,933
Capital expenditure BARY 1,034 843 = 1,877
Unallocated expenditure 7% B2 1,206
Total capital BEARFRRZ
3,083

expenditure



7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R e Bl =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

Other Net Income / (Loss) 7. Hilg N (BE) FHE
2007 2006
—EFtH BT RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
(Restated)
(E%)
Net loss realised from disposal of HEBHFREZ
investment in securities BB EERFE - (1,076)
Foreign exchange gain R W 27 -
Interest income F B U A 2,521 432
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR ZKE 5 45
Others Hity 72 171
2,625 (428)
Finance Costs 8. MBEHR
2007 2006
ZETLEE ZETRF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Interest on convertible bonds ARRESFIE - 5
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZFIE 3 -
Interest on shareholder’s loan IR E TS - 595
3 600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R = B =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

9.

Loss Before Taxation

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

o

Continuing operations

B Ht Bl 5 18

BIAEERC IR A T RIA

Discontinued operation

Consolidated

BELEEH RIEBEES GaBE
f 2007 2006 2007 2006 [ 2007 2006
ZB%LE | ZEZTRE | IEREE | CEIRE | IB%TtE | IETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR T#x ThER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E51) (E51)
Auditors’ remuneration 7t LiliE 611 300 - = 611 300
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 14,078 945 - 20,605 14,078 21,550
Cost of securities investment EFRERR 111,251 = - = 111,251 -
Depreciation of property, plant N BERZELZ
and equipment il 2,647 686 - 450 2,647 1,136
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment SE2ER 6 370 17 = 23 370
Operating lease charges in RENE LEHE
respect of rented premises il 2,851 827 - - 2,851 827
Provision for obsolete inventories REGFERE 1,359 = - = 1,359 -
Impairment on trade receivables ZHRKER 2 RME - - - 6,664 - 6,664
Impairment on property, plant and nE BERFELZ
equipment A - - - 3,058 - 3,053
Impairment on intangible assets BREEZRE - 55 - - - 55
Fair value adjustment on NHEHESHEE L
available-for-sale ATERE
financial assets 282 506 - = 282 506
Staff costs (excluding directors’ EEMA
emoluments) (TREEEHS)
- salaries and allowances - He R 12,101 4,752 - 85 12,101 4,837
— equity-settled share-based payments - REEERH AR 5,601 823 - = 5,601 823
— contributions to retirement benefits — RINBRE 2R
schemes (Note) (Pt 3E) 680 296 - 4 680 300
Note: At 31 March 2007, the Group had no forfeited contributions available s : RZTTLF=A=+—8 ' A5EELELKH

to reduce its contributions to its retirement benefits schemes in future

years (2006: HK$NIil).

R (ZBTARFE - T - ARERDRRFE
AR PRAE RIS BI(E 2 (5K -



10. Taxation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R e Bl =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

10. #IE

f 2007

2006
—EFtH BT RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET FHT

Current taxation B EARLIE
Hong Kong BB 25 -
Overseas BN 55 =
Tax charges for the year AEEHEBEL H 80 =

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year.

The taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated on the estimated
assessable profits at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per
consolidated income statement as follows:

EBTER IR ERNNEBEL 2 Gt EFHE
FIAFELA7.5% (ZFZRF 0 17.5%) 71 & o

HAth RIEME R 2 BLIR TR fh 5T FEER B 71 A% 7]
FEHERZBITHEGH -

FABIA HBER S W RAADIEBRERNT

f 2007 2006

—E%tHE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Loss before taxation R 750 Al 5 48

Continuing operations BB E XS (39,019) 61,121)
Discontinued operation IR TS (318) (17,475)
(39,337) (78,596)
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions R Hith BIIEHE R 2 N FF R 57 2 32 -

Tax at the domestic income tax rate at 17.5% {2 A8 E17.5%

(2006: 17.5%) (ZZTRE  17.5%) FH (6,884) (13,755)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes A~ A] 1% 2 B 5% 3,278 7,907
Income not subject to taxation BAZR 2 WA (539) (106)
Tax effect of accelerated tax depreciation not  BERERZ MERFEBITE 2

previously recognised ka4 28 (480)
Tax loss not recognised KR 2 T IEE 18 4,165 6,434
Tax charge for the year REERIBXZ 80 =
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B 755 4R = B =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

10.

11.

12.

13.

Taxation (Continued)

At 31 March 2007, the Group has unprovided deferred tax assets
of approximately HK$19,145,000 (2006 restated: HK$14,980,000),
primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses
(subject to agreement by relevant tax authorities). The deferred
tax assets have not been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company includes a loss of approximately HK$25,448,000 (2006:
HK$70,137,000) dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

Dividend

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company during the
year (2006: HKS$NIil).

Loss per Share

() Basic loss per share
From continuing and discontinued operations
The basic loss per share is calculated based on (i) the
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$32,544,000 (2006: HK$77,136,000) and
on (ii) the weighted average number of 1,307,019,733
ordinary shares (2006: 467,394,970 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

10. #IE (@)

R-TT+F=A=+—8  AEEEARBEE
TR TEEE#19,145,0008 T (ZTTNNFE
%l : 14,980,000/87T) * T B AR HIBEBEZ

11.

12.

13.

S

TE  AGEARBRBERAR - HRANE

FRETATER - RIEBIEE ER W - %
B 518 T R A0 o

B

HEABEEE

AAREEFEARESREBEREERERARF
B %R R B 12 7 E518 4925,448,000/8 T (Z B
7N4E ¢ 70,137,000/ 7T) ©

iz B

FRARR AL EEEXEREMBR (ZEETXR

&

T -

BRREE

(@)

BREXREE

B AR AR LA T
BREABEDBEORNAREEFEA
fE(R 4R A E51832,544,0008 7T (Z 2 E N
£ : 77,186,000/ 7T) K (i) FNE BT i@
A% A4 F 15 801,307,019,733/% (Z T =N
£ : 467,394,9700%) 5 & -
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZE_-—ZFTZ+F=HA=+—HIFE

13. Loss per Share (Continued)

(@)

Basic loss per share (Continued)
From continuing operations

The basic loss per share from continuing operations
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based
as follows:

13. SREMR G0

()

tkﬁﬁﬁm

T%ﬁﬁ%*ﬁj\ﬂgﬁﬂ%ﬁ;,ﬁ& K2 E
HQE$ETEE$E%§L/(T§M#,§ :

2007 | 2006

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET TFAT
Loss for the year attributable to NREmIEB ARG
equity holders of the Company i AR 32,544 77,136
Less: Loss for the year from AR TS
discontinued operation FANEE (318) (17,475)
Loss for the purpose of basic Rt ERFBEE XS
loss per share from continuing H§%$J§ﬂﬁ
operations 2 &8 32,226 59,661
The denominators used are the same as those detailed FifEAD B E FXFRARFERERK

above for basic loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for discontinued operation is
HK$0.0002 (2006: HK$0.0374) which is calculated based
on the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company from discontinued operation of HK$318,000
(2006: HK$17,475,000). The denominators used are the
same as those detailed above for basic loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share is presented for the year ended
31 March 2007 and 2006 as the share options outstanding
during these years had no dilutive effect on basic loss per
share for these years.

IFREEBEREAEIEERR -

’742

177

L %?&Ztﬂx%$/§ﬁ§%0 000275
TE(ZZTNEF - 0.037487T) @ IIREK
I EREB 2 RN B R A ABGFEAR
B 18318, 0008 (=T XNF :
17,475,000%7T) 51 & ° FTEAH R L
HMARFERBERRIEEEERTRE
AEEEER -

sy
m
25

7

Fh#EBHA
HRBE—ZELFR-_FTERF=A=
T BREFERRTEIBRESZEF
Bz EhERAERTBHEETE  RIUE
RREFE2ISREEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

14. Directors’ and Senior Management’'s 14. EERSREE A B Z #HH M

70  carico Holdings Limited #1354 R EER AT

Remuneration

(@) Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) for the year ended 31 March 2007 is set out

(a) EEH N

HE_ZTLF=A=+—HIEFEZX
REE=([BEF]) HMEI0T :

below:
( Basic \
salaries, Retirement
allowances Equity-settled benefits
and benefits ~ share-based schemes 2007
Directors’ in kind payments  contributions Total
fees EXEE BRAGEE BINEF “F%tE
ESie BMREVNE Rz 4343 3% Bg 3 @t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TiET FiET TiET FiET Ti#gx
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yip Chi Chiu L% E - - - - -
Mr. Lo Wing Yat BEKEREE - - - - -
Mr. Leung Chung Tak Barry ZihiELAE - - - - -
Mr. Loo Chung Keung Steve ~ EEETAE - 1,180 - 12 1,192
Mr. Chan Wai Ming BRIERLE - 1,130 - 12 1,142
Mr. Sun Yeung Yeung BEGEE - - - - -
Mr. Zu Yuan HERAE 6 - - - 6
Non-executive Directors FRITES
Mr. Ryoji Furukawa HILA%E - - - - -
Mr. Chak Chi Man BENEE - - - - -
Mr. Ryuichi Tanabe minE—xE - - - - -
Mr. Takehiko Wakayama ELEELE - - - - -
Mr. Gouw Kar Yiu Carl REBEE - - - - -
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu Michael KES KA 38 - 92 - 130
Independent non-executive BiIEHITEE
Directors
Mr. Chan Yuk Tong BRAEXLE 22 - - - 22
Mr. Pang Chun Sing PIRELAE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Chan Chun Wai BRIR L & 60 - - - 60
Mr. Sit Fung Shuen Victor R LE 22 - - - 22
Mr. Wong Miu Sung BYREAE 38 - - - 38
246 2,310 92 24 2,672
_/




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

14. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 14. EEEREREEABZHM @
Remuneration (Continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EZEFHM @
The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 BHE_ZTE=A=+—HItFEExE
March 2006 is set out below: SEHMEINAT
Basic
salaries, Retirement
allowances  Equity-settled benefits
and benefits share-based schemes 2006
Directors’ in kind payments contributions Total
fees EXge - RAZEE RIKEA —ZERF
EE0e EUREMAE FR5 5% STEIf &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT THT TAT FAT AT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Loo Chung Keung Steve ~ EE#ETAE - 780 - 12 792
Mr. Chan Wai Ming BRIERLE - 780 - 12 792
Mr. Sun Yeung Yeung BHskE - - 148 - 148
Ms. Tin Yuen Sin Carol A%EL+ - = = = =
Mr. Zu Yuan HERAE 18 - 295 - 313

Non-executive Directors FRHTES

Mr. Gouw Kar Yiu Carl RRBEE - 40 - 1 41
Ms. Gouw San Bo Elizabeth ~ RIMZE L+ - 5,843 - 5 5,848
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu Michael RESEE 60 - 36 - 96
Mr. Chak Chi Man BENEE - = = = =

Independent non-executive BiIEHITEE

Directors
Mr. Pang Chun Sing IRBEE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Chan Chun Wai BRIR R 5 60 - - - 60
Mr. Tsang Pak Chung Eddy EELE S - - - - -
Mr. Wong Miu Sung BYREE 54 - - - 54

252 7,443 479 30 8,204
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R = B =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

14. Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(@)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the

Directors during the year are as follows:

(@)

EEHM
FRENESHERENT :

743
(&)

f 2007

14. EERSREBAEZFM @

2006
ZETLEE —ETRF
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Fees wE
Executive Directors HWITES 6 18
Non-executive Directors FERITES 38 60
Independent non-executive Directors BUENTES 202 174
246 252
Other emoluments for Directors EEHMME
Basic salaries, allowances and EXRES EZMR
benefits in kind WA= 2,310 7,443
Equity-settled share-based payments BR 7S 4 & & 15 1 3k 92 479
Retirement benefits schemes RIRAEFET B4 50
contributions 24 30
2,426 7,952
2,672 8,204
The emoluments of the Directors fell within the following EEMezEBELT
bands:
Number of Directors
EEAH
2007 2006
—ETLEE ZEEX
HK$NIl — HK$1,000,000 Z % £ 1,000,000 7T 16 12
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 & 1,500,000/ 7T 2 -

HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000

5,500,001 7T 26,000,000/ 7T




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - %

14. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Remuneration (Continued)

(@)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

The above emoluments included the value of share options
granted to certain Directors under the Company’s share
option scheme as estimated at the date of grant. The details
are disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Scheme”
in the Directors’ report and Note 29.

During the year, no Director waived remuneration and no
emoluments of the Directors were incurred as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Company or as compensation for
loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
(2006: two) executive Directors, Mr. Loo Chung Keung Steve
and Mr. Chan Wai Ming and nil (2006: one) non-executive
Director, details of whose emoluments are set out above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2006: two)
employees were as follows:

B %55 2k 3R T =t

FLFE=ZA=+—HIFE

14, SEREREEBABZHFM @

()

BEH J\%
BB S SR L AR AD
72%&%&% ETESRL 2 BRE

BE - FBEREFEHRS
B —RRHFE20NRE -

&2 [ERtERT

FA - BEEFREFH - TELBE
EMARRB LR EZMARR B B
BUFRBBE)BENTEFHNSE -

IxEe%HES
FEBREESFRERERA (CEEX
FMB)PTEFESREERRERE

ERE(CETRF  —RB)FRTESF
ERAREZHEFBRN EX - K=
(ZZ2Z2RF - MAB)EEZHEFRBL
T

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHT
Basic salaries, allowances and EXRES RZMR
benefits in kind EWH = 1,111 711
Equity-settled share-based payments Hx$ USRI BN 2,898 =
Retirement benefits schemes RIRAEFET B4 5K
contributions 36 9
4,045 720
The emoluments were within the following bands: ME@EEmT

Number of Employees
EEAH

f 2007 2006

—EELE ZEETR

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

T 7L % 1,000,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

15. Discontinued Operation

15.

On 14 July 2006, the Group resolved to discontinue the business
segment of trading of electronic components. The results for this
business segment are presented in the financial statements as a

discontinued operation.

An analysis of the results of the discontinued operation is as

WIERERS
FEATEA  RAEEFRKLER
ETTUHZEBSE - REBHRZERORY
BRRIIARIELE -

R-TTX

N—=</\

RIERERBZREINAT ¢

follows:
2007 2006
—ERts | —TEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET
Turnover B - 13,649
Cost of sales $H & P AR - (20,605)
Gross loss Ei8 - (6,956)
Impairment on trade receivables B 5 R SR E - (6,664)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  #1% - HE &R ERE - (3,059)
Administrative expenses T H (318) (802)
Loss before taxation KR Tt Al T 48 (318) (17,475)
Taxation | - =
Loss from discontinued operation RIS TS E R (318) (17,475)
The cash flows attributable to the discontinued operation are as BRI EEBERERSRELT ¢
follows:
2007 2006
—ERts | —TEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET
Net cash flows from operating activities REKEERHZEEREFE 12,065 28
Net cash flows from investing activities RERBEFB2REREFH 80 -
Total cash inflows & m AR 12,145 28




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y% -~ BB Rk
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HEEFTRE BERESE HFERR ] k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
THAT THAT FTAT FTHET FAHT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZEREMNA—H 375 4,459 4,718 198 9,750
Additions NE 573 223 1,004 1,283 3,083
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —mE R E 850 6,251 72 187 7,360
Disposals HeE (380) - (227) (198) (805)
At 31 March 2006 and RZZEERE=A=1+—H
1 April 2006 k=TT FENA—H 1,418 10,933 5,567 1,470 19,388
Additions NE 483 501 1,230 33 2,247
Acquisition of a subsidiary Sl =N - - 5 - 5
Disposals & - - (4,510) - (4,510)
At 31 March 2007 RZZTLE=A=1+—H 1,901 11,434 2,292 1,503 17,130
Accumulated depreciation =~ Rt E R {E
and impairment
At 1 April 2005 R-ZEEREMA—H 148 4,459 967 79 5,653
Charge for the year AEELTH 128 328 596 84 1,136
Impairment A - - 3,053 - 3,053
Disposals HE (205) = (100) (109) (414)
At 31 March 2006 and RZEEREF=A=1+—H
1 April 2006 k=TT EFNA—H 71 4,787 4,516 54 9,428
Charge for the year AEELH 374 1,423 475 375 2,647
Disposals HE - - (4,407) - (4,407)
At 31 March 2007 R-_FEZE+&=A=+—H 445 6,210 584 429 7,668
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2007 R-_FEZE+&=A=+—H 1,456 5,224 1,708 1,074 9,462
At 31 March 2006 RZZEERE=A=1+—H 1,347 6,146 1,051 1,416 9,960
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

17. Goodwill 17. BHE
Group REE
HK$'000
FHIT
Cost A<
At 1 April 2005 RZTEZTHRFMA—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary U b — M E A A 816
At 31 March 2006 RZTETRF=A=+—H 816
Acquisition of subsidiaries g BB B /B A A 3,174
At 31 March 2007 R_ZETtLHF=A=+—H 3,990
Impairment BE
At 1 April 2005 R-ZEEHEFMA—A -
Impairment loss for the year REFREEE =
At 31 March 2006 RZTEZEF=A=+—H -
Impairment loss for the year NEEREERE -
At 31 March 2007 R-ZZEE+F=A=+—H -
Carrying value BRE{E
At 31 March 2007 R-ZZEE+F=A=+—H 3,990
At 31 March 2006 RZTTRF=ZA=+—8H 816




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 2k 3R T =t

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

17. Goodwill Continued) 17. B2 »)
Impairment tests for goodwill B EAENE:
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) BENPRERAEEREBELEEMTEERREBD
identified according the country of operations and business BRI 2 RBELEEN -
segments.
A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented FEDR 2 D FKEMEZRAT -
below:
2007 2006
—E%tHE —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Manufacturing and trading of automotive RETHRERES
components 2,342 816
Securities brokerage FEHEL 1,648 =
3,990 816

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

Management determined budgeted gross margin and growth rates
based on past performance and its expectations of the market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The value in use calculated by using the discount rate is higher
than the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the CGU
and accordingly, no impairment loss was necessary.

ReELBM 2z AREeRRERBENEEE
E o B ETRS RREIEEIERF I
BEFAEMSRSRERA - AFHUIZRE
MEBIMER TPtz fhatig REHE -

EEERBBERANEHNMSERETEEE
MERIERE - PRERAFRETDARTIE - AIR
BRAGRA X 2 AR -

Nz HE 2 BERN O RER S ELEN
ZEEREE - RSN ERDRERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

17.

18.

Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

Details of the parametres applied are as follows:—

17. B
EESERER

;

(A5

43

)
/

(42
(#5)

iRz 280

Manufacturing and

trading of Securities
automotive components brokerage
HNEREEREZH BHELD
f 2007 2006 [ 2007 2006
ZEELEHE ZETEREF —ETLE —TTREF
Discount rate iR = 19.3% 25% 17.7% -
Growth rate beyond the AF BB ZERE
five-year period 3%-15% 25% 3%-15% =
Interests in Subsidiaries 18. MiB N R H#E =
Company PiN/NE]|
f 2007 2006
ZETLEE ZETRF
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost LA - KA 21 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries i =G 186,917 126,790
Less: Provision for impairment B OB E R (160,702) (126,811)
26,236 -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and no fixed
terms of repayment. Included in the amounts due from subsidiaries,
HK$5,000,000 is bearing interest at the prevailing Best Lending

Rate and the remaining are interest-free.

The carrying values of the amounts due from subsidiaries are

approximate to their fair values.

JRE A2 BT 8 2 B RIR Y SR AR e SR B B R -
LK Bf /&8 2 Bl FRIE AR - 5,000,000 7T Ty IR ER 1T &
BEESRFERGFE BRTHEHNARE o

W B A B R 2 R R E N FERE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R e Bl =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2007 are as follows:

18.

B B 22 0

N_TELF=A=+—H  WEREZFEN

-
Nominal value
of issued and
Place of fully paid /
incorporation registered capital Percentage
and operations BERITRAR held by the Principal
Name =M A S R = #E activities
£ Fed-$iik EAXRMEE Bl TEXH
Company Group
YN &
Basland Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment
Islands of US$1 each holding
KERERRES 100k & AR E (B REER
1R EBR
Carico (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100% Investment
Limited ) of HK$1 each holding
HRER (BB ERAR 1R G IREE REZER
1B Z BB
Carico Investment People’s Republic US$99,980 - 100% Dormant
Consulting (Shanghai) of China 99,980% 7T Tmas
Limited (Note a) AR
RERELR(LE)
BER AR (HffiTa)
Carico Logistics Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100% Logistics
Limited B of HK$1 each i
HRR AR A 1R G IR EE
1B Z BB
Carico Strategic British Virgin 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Dormant
Investment Limited Islands of US$1 each TEma
EBERRES 1A% & AR
1R EBR
Champion World British Virgin 1 ordinary share = 100% Dormant
Investment Limited Islands of US$1 each TEma
EBARRES 1A% & AR
1R EBR
China Automotive Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Securities
Resources Limited B of HK$1 each investment
HESEERERDA 1R G IREE EHRE

1B TT 2 &R

6/ %3 ,002/900¢ MWodey [enuuy
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18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 18. MIB A B #E 5= (&)

80 carico Holdings Limited #}5&RIR EE R A &

Nominal value
of issued and

Place of fully paid /
incorporation registered capital Percentage
and operations BEETREHE held by the Principal
Name & M B SR BLA =i activities
&% BEME BAXAEE Bt TEXH
Company Group
PN A&EE
China Automotive Canada CAD1 - 100% Dormant
Resources (Canada) Inc. mnex 107t TmE
China Automotive United States 100 shares common - 100% Dormant
Resources (USA) Inc. of America stock of US$0.01 each g
ez 1008k & AR E (&
0.01E T2 LR
Crown Wealth Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Investment
Development Limited B5 of HK$1 each holding
BAERARRDA 2R GREE REER
1B @K
Full Investment Hong Kong 300 ordinary shares = 100% Dormant
Limited BB of HK$1 each am g
REKLEFRAT 300M FARE &
1Bz EEK
Fullbelief International British Virgin 1 ordinary share = 100% Investment
Limited Islands of US$1 each holding
REEBRHS 1R EREE REZER
1ET 2 LAk
Gorient (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment
Limited BB of HK$1 each holding
BE () BRAA 1008 B AR E (& REZER
1Bz @K
Glory Era Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100% 100% Cost centre
BEAERAR BB shares of HK$1 each B L
10,000/ F iR E &
1Bz L@k
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

18. MiB Rz

Nominal value
of issued and

Place of fully paid /
incorporation registered capital Percentage
and operations BEETREHE held by the Principal
Name & M B, 3L B A =i activities
&8 REBE EAREE Bt TEXH
Company Group
ANH A&EE
Infast Brokerage Limited Hong Kong 25,000,000 ordinary - 100% Provision for
HEEZESFERAA B shares of HK$1 each securities
25,000,000/ & & E A brokerage
18Tz L@k services
RUEEFELRY
Lucky Metro Trading British Virgin 100 ordinary shares - 100% Investment
Ltd. Islands of US$1 each holding
KEERRHES 1008 &R E (& REER
1R EBR
Prime Year Investments British Virgin 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Investment
Limited Islands of US$1 each holding
REEBRHS 1REREE REZER
1ET 2 LAk
Rich Pool Commercial British Virgin 1 ordinary share = 100% Investment
Limited Islands of US$1 each holding
REEBRHS 1R EREE REZER
1ET 2 LAk
Sky Cheer Corporation Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Production and
Limited BB of HK$1 each distribution of
ABARAA 1REREE TV programmes
18Tz L@k BREE BHER
1T
Sky Era Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% General trading
AEBRAR BB of HK$1 each —RES
1REREE
18Tz L@k
Sumrise Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Dormant
ERAERAR BB of HK$1 each ma

1A% & AR (B
1T EBR
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18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 18. B A RERE &)

82  carico Holdings Limited # /5% RIR EE R A &

Nominal value
of issued and

Place of fully paid /
incorporation registered capital Percentage
and operations BEETREHE held by the Principal
Name & M B, 3L B A =i activities
&% REBE EAXEE Bt TEXH
Company Group
PN A&

Tianjin Guangying People’s US$500,000 - 50% Dormant
Automotive Mirror Republic 500,0003 75 Tma
Company Limited (Note b) of China

RERBAEHEERDA HEAREME
(Fft D)

Unicla International Limited Hong Kong 31,000,000 ordinary - 62.1% Trading and

LETNEREERAR B8 shares of HK$1 each manufacturing

31,000,000/ & % of automotive
EE1E T2 LMk components
RETHEER
KBl

Unicla International Japan 60 shares of = 62.1% Trading of

(Japan) Limited =N YEN50,000 each automotive
BOR B IR E & components
50,000F B 2 i MEZHER

Yinshau Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100% 100% Investment

BEERAT BB shares of HK$1 each holding

10,000/ &R EE REZER
1B @K
Note: B 5 -
(a) Carico Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Limited is a wholly foreign (@) RERAERA (LB EARARA—HABBERFEAR

owned enterprise under the laws of the People’s Republic of China.

(b) Tianjin Guangying Automotive Mirror Company Limited is a Sino-
foreign owned joint venture enterprise under the laws of the People’s
Republic of China. It has been regarded as a subsidiary and its
accounts have been consolidated since in the opinion of the
Directors, the Group has the power to govern its financial and

operating policies.

HMBERERILZINEBERE

b) REXBAUEREERABDRRETEARKME

SRR 2 RIS A S

©X - AREERS

AEEBENEERABREEHR - HEAA
BRAEHBAR - MARASHAHE -



19.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interests in Associates

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z - %

B %55 2k 3R T =t

FLFE=ZA=+—HIFE

19. BiENFRIER

Group AEH
2007 2006
—ETLE ZTERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Share of net liabilities EhaEFE - (3,080)
Unamortised goodwill on acquisition IR R B 25,479 25,479
Impairment on goodwill (Note a) EERE (fEa) (25,479) (25,479)
- (3,080)
Loans to associates (Note b) “% ?’Hﬁr N A B R (B EED) 9,890 9,890
Less: Impairment on loans to associates B R THERARERZBE (9,890) (6,417)
- 3,473
- 393
Note: B 5 -
(@) The goodwill arising from acquisition of associates are fully impaired (a) BHEZZTTAEF=-A=1T—HILFE - BEH

during the year ended 31 March 2006. ERREEZEHBERERME -

(b)  The loans to associates are unsecured, interest free and have no (b) LTHERRBERAEERE 28 REETFEN
fixed terms for repayment. In the opinion of the Directors, the carrying HoE W% f»“ﬁ"ﬂ?‘r‘%” AIERZREmERE
value of the loans to associates approximate to their fair value at REEBZATFEEE -
the balance sheet date.

(0 The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s (c) TXEHIIAEEHERARNBE_STLF=A=
associates for the year ended 31 March 2007 is set out below: T—BLEFEZHBEERRE :

f 2007 2006
—EELE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Total assets BEHE 1,456 4,945

Total liabilities BERE (11,478) (10,586)

Revenue & 3,433 14,574

Loss for the year AEFEEEIE (6,393) (4,722)

©9 %3 2002/900¢ Modey [enuuy



84 cCarico Holdings Limited # /5% RR EE R A &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 4R = B =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

19.

Interests in Associates

Details of the associates are as follows:

Place of
incorporation
and operations

9. Bi&E A
AZEENT

e

A

EAP/N

Percentage of
equity shares held
by the Group

Name of company = M B 3L 7 &£ H A 4% Principal activities
#1E R AR & R, EHEBEBZAESL FTEXH
Intelligent Transport System Holdings British Virgin Islands 50% Investment holding
Limited * RBEBRES REEK
ITS Car Alarm Limited * Hong Kong 50% Trading of motor car
ERAEHEER AR * BE alarm systems
MEERFAREE
Intelligent Transport System (Telematics) Hong Kong 50% Dormant
Limited * BB L
ERB% CEE) ARQA
Intelligent Transport System Asia Limited * British Virgin Islands 50% Dormant
EEERRHS TEER
Wide and Bright Limited * British Virgin Islands 30% Dormant
REBEBRES TEex

* Not audited by CCIF CPA Limited

CRERRGETEESFER A AIEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

20. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

20. AIHHEEMEE

Group RE
2007 2006
—EELHE ZETRF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
Unlisted Investments in securities, AEMHBHEE
At cost less impairment loss B AR E BB (a) - —
At fair value EAFE (b) 15,918 =
15,918 -
Note: B & -
(@) The equity securities issued by private entities are measured at cost (a) AAABBRITZRAIZSFNESEE B IRKAR

less impairment at each balance sheet date. The Directors consider
that information to be applied in the valuation technique cannot be
reliably obtained on a continuous basis. The fair values of these
unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably measured.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of
unlisted available-for-sale financial assets with reference to their
business performance and the profit projection.

The fair values of unlisted securities are based either (1) on cash
flows discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate
and the risk premium specific to the unlisted securities, or (2) market
approach for the valuation methodology, which uses the information
of the public markets of share of other compatible companies in
the same and similar line of business.

AEHE - EFRA - RBHELZ ERIOLS
RS - SR LTRAES 2 AFEMA
AR -

FR - EE2REPERR N B EM AR L
mAHNESREERAE -

AETEFZ RFETIRIBIAT R —HHHE
WEENTSNERR ETESZHERREE
ZHREFRZRERE  RQMBMHETE -
ZI AR AN S EE M EARREUEDS
ZRBARZBMHEHR -
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21.

22,

Inventories 21. &

Group RE
f 2007 2006
_EELE —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Raw materials [ 4,688 5,607
Work in progress EE 2,068 =
Finished goods R T 1,731 4,432
8,487 10,039

Amounts due from Related Companies

The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms for repayment.

22. BWEREARNER

WEERRFAETEER R RERTEE

Hy o
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

23. Trade and Other Receivables 23. ES RHEMEWERK
Group Company
AEE P N/N|

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHE ZEERF —EELHE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHT FHET
Trade receivables EWE SRR 12,345 13,856 - —
Advances to suppliers BT R R KB - 64 - =
Other receivables H B U BR SR 2,619 12,214 175 14
14,964 26,134 175 14

Included in the balances are trade receivables with an aged analysis

FTABSBRZEWE SRR BREDITT

as follows:
Group Company
AEME PN
( 2007 2006 [ 2007 2006
—ZEELHE ZEERF —EFEtHE —ETTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHT F#T FHET
Within 3 months (Note) =@A R (K 11,619 1,786 - =
4 to 6 months mZE 75 @ A 573 = - =
Over 6 months ANEA MR E 153 12,070 - =
12,345 13,856 - =
Note: P &E -

Included an amount of HK$6,751,000 (2006: HK$NIl) attributable to
securities brokerage business with settlement terms at two days after the
trade date.

Trading terms with customers are either on a cash basis or credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, a credit period is allowed
according to relevant business practice. Credit limits are set for
customers. The Group seeks to maintain tight control over its
outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by senior management.

Bt AR S AL E TS IE(E IR6,751,0008 7T (Z2ZR
F:TEL)  KEPRARXZHBRMA °

HEFZBSEFRESREETR - HRAE
ERRETESZER  ARESRIEEHER
EBPlETEESR UREPREGERE - A%
BN RER 2 B RFCETTRIREAE - URIE
EERR - BRIz & REARREEABED®R
& e
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #Z=ZF L+ F=A=+—HIFE

23. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

24,

23. €5 RHEtBERTK @)
BESEEEH L MRERRE B RETERE

Except for receivables from securities brokerage business which
are bearing interest at the prevailing Best Lending Rate plus 5%
per annum, the balances of trade receivables are non-interest
bearing. The carrying amounts of receivables are approximate to

their fair values.

Cash and Bank Balances

MEMSEE BRI - BUE F RN A R ET
B BURFR Z REERE QA FEBEE

24. RE RRITHEER

Group Company
& ¥ YN

( 2007 2006 [ 2007 \ 2006
oS S o 3 —EERF oS o 3 ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FET T#ET FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERSE 16,986 17,443 2,960 10,243
Short-term bank deposits RHRITFER 91,370 15,100 84,058 15,100
108,356 32,543 87,018 25,343

One of the subsidiaries maintains trust bank accounts with an

authorised institution in the normal course of business transactions.
As at 31 March 2007, trust bank balances not dealt with in these
financial statements amounted to HK$3,346,000 (2006: HK$NIl).

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits ranged
from 2.30% to 4.24% (2006:4%); these deposits have an average
maturity of less than 14 days (2006: 7 days).

H—HfBARNAEEBRZBREPE—K

RAMBHY T EERTHRP

o R

—EFLE=

A=+—8 UERKEVERRTPEREZET
SRITHE 8 A3,346,0008 T (ZBEENF : T8

o)

RAERITIE R 2 BB FI R E A2.30E F4.24F
(ZZ2EREF  4F) ZSHERZFHEHA A

L1488 (ZFZ

NET7H) e
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25. Trade and Other Payables

25. BES REMESMTERE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

Group Company
AEH YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE ZETRF —EELE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHEIT TH#T FHET
Trade payables FERE RN 8,487 193 - =
Other payables and accruals ~ Hth B ERZA KL ETE A 2,323 4,859 566 576
10,810 5,052 566 576
Included in the balances are trade payables with an aged analysis AR ENESERRAZERESTOT ¢
as follows:
Group Company
AER b /N
f 2007 2006 [ 2007 2006
—ZETLE ZETRF —ZET+LE —TTREF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT F#T FHIT
Within 3 months (Note) =@EAR (M) 8,368 193 - =
Over 6 months NEA M E 119 - - -
8,487 193 - _
Note: B 5 -

Included an amount of HK$6,793,000 (2006: HK$ Nil) attributable to
securities brokerage business with settlement terms at two days after the

trade date.

Except for certain client payables in respect of the Group’s
securities brokerage business are interest-bearing at rates
approximate to prevailing market saving rates, the balances of
trade payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amounts of

the payables are approximate to their fair values.

F T

Bt AR AR TS (5 376,793,000 7T (Z2ER
BEHRARZHAKMA -

BETAEBARERE A ERER RN PR
RALRT TS FRMN R SXGF 85 BN
SRFEHRE TR - BRNRRZEEEEZER
FEBEE -
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90 carico Holdings Limited 5 & RREER AT

26. Share Capital 26. A&
2007 2006
—5%tE ZTTRFE
rNo. of shares \ No. of shares
BnER L]
Note ’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
Bt Th THET T THET
Authorised: EERA
At the beginning of year F10
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E T L& 50,000,000 500,000 50,000,000 500,000
Consolidation of every 10 shares B10RAHBIRZIGA G
into 1 share (a) - - (45,000,000) (450,000)
50,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 50,000
Cancellation of unissued shares FAHAETRN (b) - - (4,792,782) (47,927)
Increase in authorised share capital 3 VA TE AR AR (©) - - 49,792,782 497,927
At the end of year FiK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.1E T LB 50,000,000 500,000 50,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BBRTRAREA:
At the beginning of year £
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE0.01E T LB 828,871 8,289 1,727,177 17,272
Issue of new shares pursuant to BERGESETHRG
share placements - - 345,000 3,450
Consolidation of every 10 shares B10RA B BIRZ G A 6
into 1 share - - (1,864,959) -
Capital reduction BB AR A (b) - - - (18,650)
Issue of new shares pursuant to BERARBEEITHRG
open offer (d) 829,551 8,295 621,653 6,217
Exercise of share options I RERE (e) 55,453 555 = =
At the end of year F
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.1E T LB 1,713,875 17,139 828,871 8,289
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

26. Share Capital (continued)

Note:
(a)

(b)

(c)

Share consolidation

By a resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 23 September 2005, the authorised and issued
share capital of the Company had been consolidated for every ten
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each into one ordinary share of HK$0.1
each (“Consolidated Share”).

Capital reorganisation

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
September 2005, it was approved that with effect from 26
September 2005:

(i) the nominal value of the Consolidated Shares in issue was
reduced from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each by canceling
the issued share capital to the extent of HK$0.09 paid up on
each of the issued Consolidated Shares (“Capital
Reduction”);

(ii) all the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company
was cancelled and subsequently the authorised share capital
was increased to the original authorised share capital of
HK$500,000,000 by the creation of such number of the new
shares of HK$0.01 each taking into account the number of
issued new shares ranking pari passu with the then existing
shares of the Company;

(ii) credit arising from the Capital Reduction was entirely
transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company;

(iv) the entire amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company as at 31 March 2005 was cancelled
(“Share Premium Reduction”) and the credit arising from the
Share Premium Reduction was entirely transferred to the
contributed surplus account of the Company; and

(v) an amount equivalent to the amount of the accumulated
losses of the Company as at 31 March 2005 was applied
from the contributed surplus account against such
accumulated losses in full.

Increase in authorised share capital

On 26 September 2005, the Company’s authorised share capital
was increased to HK$500,000,000 by the creation of additional
49,792,782,284 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari
passu with the then existing shares of the Company.

it 5
(a)

(b)

(c)

B & 6t
BER-_TTRFNAZT=ARTZEAARR
RENASBBZRER  ARARZEAERDHE
TRA B0 B EE.ONEIL L KB A 6
AEBREMBEIETZERBR ([A6H]) -

BRAEHE
RZZBEZRAFNA-_T=ZBETZARAREE
RAELE  #EEB-TTAFAA-F/RAR:

(i) EHEREBRTAHRO ZHREHITR
RO.09TT - EEEITAGHBRMD ZEER
BR%0.107E AR Z=0.017E 7T ([ IR AR
A1)

(ii) EHEARRFIAAEBRBETZHA - I
REGHESRES I EARNAAEREE
M1 Z B RSS2 SREE.01ATTH
R - BEERANEEFRETERA
500,000,000/ 7T + miga&F D 2 & B
KA BT ZHAREE

@iy  HURBRAEAZERZIEERARZH
ABBRIR

(iv) HEHEARRAR-ZZAF=A=+—HK
DB ZaPER (TR DEE]D
T HIRAR (7 8 (B T EE A E R 2 P = A
REZBABRKRER + R

v) BRESARKRKRTHEENAATNR_-_ZE
hE=ZA=1T—RAZRFERSBEIH
B ABBHEEZRAEE

ik E B A

RZZEZTRFNAZTE  BREINEITESH
EHRAARESREAROEZARASEEZ
49,792,782,284 8 F AR EEOC.01& T2 LAk -
18 7281 A] 2 % FE B AR 38 2 500,000,000 7T ©

L6 ¥ L002/9002 Hodey [enuuy
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26. Share Capital (continued)
Note: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subscriptions of new shares

On 18 June 2005, the Company issued 345,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.04 per share to not less than
six independent investors.

On 25 October 2005, the Company issued 621,653,148 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per
share pursuant to the open offer on the basis of three offer shares
for every adjusted share held on 3 October 2005.

On 13 September 2006, the Company issued 829,550,864 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at the subscription price of HK$0.12 per
share pursuant to the open offer on the basis of one offer share for
every share held on 23 August 2006.

All the new ordinary shares issued during the year ranked pari passu
in all respects with the then existing ordinary shares of the Company.

Exercise of share options

During the year, options to subscribe for 55,453,432 ordinary shares
were exercised. The net consideration was HK$6,378,316 of which
HK$554,534 was credited to share capital account and the balance
of HK$5,823,782 was credited to the share premium account.
HK$1,980,000 was transferred from share option reserve account
to share premium account.

All the new ordinary shares issued during the year ranked pari passu
in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

26. BR 7~ ;
WiEE ()
A BREFR

(e)

RZTZERFRNAT=H - ARRIEER0.04%
TZBHRATIRANBBILREE ET
345,000,000/% FAX M {H0.018 7T 2 L @Ak -

RZZEZERFTA=-+HAB  AREIREARE
ERR-ZERETA-ASEE " REAZK
D= RBER N 2 EE - UREESRR.10
T E%17621,653,1480 SR EE0.01B T2 T
AR ©

R-ZBEXNENA+=8 AARIBREBEARRE
BR-_ZEEXNENA-+=ZBEFE KRB HE
B—RBERNG 2EE - URBEER.12ET
#17829,550,864 % F R EE0.01B Tt 2 LB
% °

FABRITZAANEBRES T AERR T ER
ABELARFERSHELS

ITIE R R

FR - RAE55,453,4320 LM Ak 2 AR IE T 1T
f# - R{EF58 56,378,316/ T + HA554,534/8
TTEFARKRA - MeR%85,823,782/ LT A
A& 1575 BRI © 1,980,000/ 7T 1 i AR 4 & & BR
BARMDHERA

FARE NBT 2 H BB FERAR TR
BRI H RS -
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Total
4%

HK$'000

TAL

At 1 April 2005

Capital reduction

Gancellation of share premium
Transfers

Issue of new shares

Issue of share options

Exchange difference on
translation of the financial
statements of foreign
subsidiaries

Loss for the year

Share
premium
RiiEE
HK$'000
TR
R=ZZRFMA-A 22,435
HRRA -
THRNEE (22,435)
a2 -
BHRG 66,299
LfiEhE -
TEBIHELR
BBRRRESE
LELEE
EnEg -

45,831

18,650

66,299

2,956

(77,136)

At 31 March 2006 and
1 April 2006

Issue of new shares

Proceeds from shares
issued upon exercise
of share options

Exercise of share options
Issue of share options

Exchange difference on
translation of the financial
statements of foreign
subsidiaries

Loss for the year

RZZERE=A=1-H
R=ETREMA-H 66,299

Rk 91,250
ERRES

EIRRZ

FiesE 5,824
EERE 1,980
BiTRE -
TERNHEAR

HHERBEL
LEREE

ERER =

56,606

91,250

5824

7,606

13

(82,544)

At 31 March 2007

RZZRLF=A=T-H 165353

128,755

©6 %3 L002/900¢ Modey [enuuy
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27. Reserves (Continued) 27. #%& =)
Company P/N/NE]!
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
B n it (B BANBH EXEERE - BRERE BHEBR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2005 R-ZEREMA—A 22,435 58,685 1,868 - (84,264) (1,276)
Capital reduction B A - 18,650 - - - 18,650
Cancellation of share R RE
premium (22,435) 22,435 - - - -
Transfers EE - (84,264) - - 84,264 -
Issue of new shares BITHRD 66,299 - - - - 66,299
Issue of share options RiTHRRE - - - 2,956 - 2,956
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (70,137) (70,137)
At 31 March 2006 RZZEE F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2006 R=FTZ FMA—H 66,299 15,506 1,868 2,956 (70,137) 16,492
Issue of new shares BAHMRH 91,250 - - - - 91,250
Proceeds from shares TR EE AR
issued upon exercise Rk
of share options Fifs A 5,824 - - - = 5,824
Exercise of share options {7 BB AR 1,980 - - (1,980) = -
Issue of share options BIBRE - - - 7,606 = 7,606
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (25,448) (25,448)
At 31 March 2007 RZEE+E=A=1+—H 165,353 15,506 1,868 8,582 (95,585) 95,724
The Company has no reserves available for distribution as at 31 ARRIR =TT+ F=A=1+—HIEEIJHIIK

March 2007 (2006: HK$NIl).

2R (CF

G
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28. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(@)

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year, the Group disposed of subsidiaries with
net liabilities amounted to HK$5,000 (2006: HK$45,000)
which give rise to the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$5,000 (2006: HK$45,000).

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(0

On 7 June 2006, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Infast Brokerage
Limited (“Infast”), a company that was engaged in
the provision of securities brokerage services, for a
cash consideration of approximately HK$9,193,000,
which gave rise to a goodwill amounted to
approximately HK$1,648,000. The goodwill arising on
the acquisition of Infast is attributable to the
anticipated profitability of the securities brokerage
business.

The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$1,247,000 and net loss of HK$2,396,000 to the
Group for period from acquisition to 31 March 2007.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2006, the
acquired business would contribute revenue of
HK$1,537,000 and net loss of HK$2,717,000 to the
Group. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2006, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

On 28 July 2005, the Group subscribed for 30% of
the issued share capital of Unicla International Limited
(“UIL”), which was accounted for as interest in an
associate using equity method during the period from
28 July 2005 to 14 December 2005. On 15 December
2005, additional 23% of the issued share capital of
UIL was acquired. UIL has been consolidated as a
subsidiary of the Group when control was acquired
effectively on 15 December 2005. UIL contributed
turnover of HK$757,000 and a loss after tax of
HK$3,106,000 to the Group since the date of
acquisition of its control up to 31 March 2006.

On 4 January 2007, the Group subscribed for
6,000,000 shares of UIL at the consideration of
HK$6,000,000 which increased the shareholding to
62.1% and a goodwill has arose of approximately
HK$1,526,000. The recognition of goodwill from UIL
is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
automotive business with its brand name “Unicla”.

28. %%
()

B %55 2k 3R T =t

FLFE=ZA=+—HIFE

EHRERERMEE
ﬁEEFTJ?/\F
FA - AEBEENBEARBEFEE

5,000 7T (ZZF

JNEE 145, ooo;%fc) E

4 HENE QR 2 5,000 7T (=
JNAFE 1 45,0008 7T) ©

Hﬁl ﬁ;\ﬁ 17N &l

(0

E/\_% 7/\¢/\H‘EE| Z’K%.Tﬂ
U B ER F AR AR ([HE] -
B—BREFFCLCRFEZAR) 2
HEBTIRAE  BEREYD
9,193,000/ 7T * EEZHEEXN A
1,648,000/8 7T ° [ Uk B8 2 fE i 22 A

Fﬁﬁ%m%é 55440 75 2 TR ER
BFEEN -

ZWBEBRNKEAREE _ET
+F=A=+—BHEAKEBR
R ZE1,247,000/8 7T M F5 185 58
2,396,000/ 7T °

WEZWER -_ZEZTFMA—H
é”éi ZWBEE ] BAEERR
251,537,000 7t & &5 18 /% 58
2,717,000/ 7T ° tBE & FHEER P
2R WIEMEZRBER-_ZTZT X
FMA—HREK  AEBEEERE
BrRBSREEZEZ  NEEE
HARREE ZTEA -

RZZEZRFEA=-F+NB K&
ERELERNEEARAR (L
BRuBER]) BETRA30% It
HRAEN - ZZRF+A-+/\H
ZE-ETAF+_F+EBHEMN
AR —MEEE QR 2RSS
Bk -R=_ZTZTHRE+_A+FHA
ANEEFEINEEE L B B R T 5
TREAN23% « EERNEBER=
TERF+ A+ HBERKEE
FERSHALAEBHBAR - B
W%%H%ZHEI_77A¢7
A=+—H ' RERNBEERALE
[B] 75 2 44 S 58 757,00078 7T R R B 18
&5183,106,000/& T °

R=ZZZ+F—AMNA ' A5ER
BE L B 72 v B X 6,000,000 A% 17 -
{E{€6,000,000/8 7T * BEBFRE D
L E62.1% M E A mLY
1,526,000/ 7T ° MERR B E R
BB NREREER (L2
RN AERE) ZEEARES -
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28. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. & &

ReEREafMsE @

(Continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WEKNBAA &)
f 2007 2006
ZETLEE ZETRF
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
The carrying amounts and W FEERAERATME :
fair values of net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 5 7,360
Other operating assets B EE 205 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH b e SR K 1,776 1,881
Inventories 5E& - 10,155
Intangible assets | EE - 55
Cash and bank balances R & RIRTT R 6,814 3,411
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A FE A BR K (1,255) (1,405)
Minority interests DERR R S - (10,085)
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEZEE 1,648 816
9,193 12,188
Satisfied by: TRAFR :
Cash considerations HeRE 9,193 13,250
Share of equity results before taking R ER A5 42 Il 4 A G AR AR
control - (1,062)
9,193 12,188
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: ~ WEEE £ 2 B &7 HIF58 ¢
Cash considerations paid ENBEERE (9,193) (13,250)
Cash and bank balances acquired Iy B8 7 I & K ER1T4E &4 6,814 3,411
(2,379) (9,839)
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Share Option Scheme

On 30 March 2004, a share option scheme (as amended by the
addendum adopted by the Company on 7 December 2005) (the
“Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) for the purpose of enabling the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group, which will be effective
for ten years until 29 March 2014.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of Directors (the “Board”) may
at any time within ten years from the adoption date, offer any
eligible participant (including any executive director of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries) options to subscribe for shares in the
Company (the “Shares”) at a price not less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trades in one or more
board lots of shares on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c)  the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant.

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and not yet
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group shall not exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The total number of Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme. The maximum
entitlement of each participant in any twelve month period under
the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being.

Each grant of options to any Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the shares issuable upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person in the twelve
month period up to and including the date of such grant in
aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Shares quoted on the
Stock Exchange on the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting.

29.

e R S
R-FEMF=A=+8 - FRARE (BEE])
BB —AMA AT B ([t 8] AR
R-FTRF+= A LERAMBIED) - 4
EETRTET2BARBRE - AEHRIE
ERTEBELER - L BBRBE—T
FZRA-TABIL+FHEER-

BiEZTE - EFg ([EFE]) ATRRA A HE
THEAEMNRRAENSERZEA (BFERR
B E AN E QR Z EMATES) R HER
7 ETOR T RESE ZBRABBRDAK
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BEHRRTEZAATREEZSERER L A
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BREBEm A TET 2RO EFBBEEHITRN
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29. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of the consideration of HK$1 per each
grant of option. The exercise period of the options is determinable
by the Directors, and shall expire not later than ten years from the
date of grant. The Scheme does not specify the requirement as to
minimum period for which an option must be held.

29. WM HE B

FREBBEEREE B ME—_+— AAREA - &

a5 /8

7R

ML 2 S0 BRI REUET - B
BITEMAESETE - THTSEREL B8R
TEHEERER - Zat SN EREBBREAERE 2

RAGHR -

Details of the options and movements in such holdings during the HE_TTLF=A=1+—HILFE  BREK
year ended 31 March 2007 are as follows: BRERERAES 2 FROT
Effect  Reclassified Granted Exercise
of Open during during price
Asat Offer the year the year Exercised Lapsed Asat HKS
1 April (Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) during during 31 March (Note a)
Category of 2006 NREE RER RER the year the year 2007 TR
participants  Date of grant RISERE e EfNE b RER RER  RZ55LE  Exercise period #
SHEEN  RYAM HA-R (H&ta) (Hzt) (UED) frée %%  =ZR=t-H friEs (Hta)
Directors 21/12/2005 13,420,000 1,635,129 (14,955,129) - - - - 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.11486
g3 “2FRF+A=t-A “FEREt-A-t-B%
“E-R%+-R=1R
20/10/2006 = = (1,000,000) 1,000,000 = = = 20/10/2006-19/10/2016 0.242
“E555TA-1R “ESRETA-THE
ZE3-7"E1+A1TNhA
Employees 21/12/2005 23,040,000 2,557,785 - - (24,771,985) (334,317) 491,513 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.11486
€& “FERRET-A=t+-H (Note d) “RERET-ACT-HE
(Bzta) “E-R%+-A=1R
20/10/ 2006 = = = 61,080,000 = (800,000) 60,280,000 20/10/2006-19/10/2016 0.242
“E55ETA-1R “ESRETAZTHE
ZE-RETATAR
Suppliers 21/12/2005 21,500,000 2,459,410 - - - - 23,959,410 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.11486
e Z2ERFtA=1-A “FEREt-A-t-B%
“E-R%+-A=1R
20/10/2006 = = = 7,360,000 = = 7,360,000 20/10/2006-19/10/2016 0.242
ZE55ETA-TR “ESRETA-THE
ZE3-7E1+AT A
Others 15/04/2004-23/08/2004 4,936,615 - - - - (4,936,615) - 15/04/2004-22/06/2014  0.7-0.73
4] “ZTMENATRAZR “ZENENATRAR
“ZERENAZTER “E-mERAZTZR
24/08/2004-31/12/2004 1,527,795 = = = = (1,527,795) = 24108 /2004 -24 /06 /2014 0.54
“FEMENAZTIAZ “ESMENA-TMAZ
ZRERETZR=T-H “E-mERA=TMA
21/12/2005 24,840,000 2841477 14,995,129 - (30,681,477) - 11,955,129 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.11486
ZE2RET-A=t+-B “RERET-ACT-HE
“E-Rf+-A=1R
20/10/ 2006 = = 1,000,000 13,500,000 = = 14,500,000 20/10/2006-19/10/2016 0.242
ZE55ETACTR “ESRETA-THE
ZE3-7E1+ATNhA
89,264,410 9,393,801 - 82,940,000 (65,453,432) (7,598,727) 118,546,062
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29. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 29. BERRHERTE| (@)
Details of the options and movements in such holdings during the BE_ZTTXF=ZA=1+—HLFE  BREKX
year ended 31 March 2006 are as follows: BRERERAES 2FRNT
Effect of
consolidation
As at of shares Effect Granted Exercised Lapsed As at Exercise
1 April (Note h) of Open during during during 31 March price
Category of 2005 B Offer the year the year the year 2006 HK$
participants  Date of grant RZETRE ba 7 | NRBE RER RER RER  RIFFAE  Exercise period TR
S8EEH  BHEH mA-A () b4 71 b e %%  ZR=t-B  fEH #
Directors 21/12/2005 - - - 13,420,000 - - 13,420,000 21/12/2005-20/ 12/ 2015 0.128
EE “ETRE+-A=1-A “2ERFt-A-1+-BE
ZT-REFZAZTE
Employees 21/12/2005 - - - 23,040,000 - - 23,040,000 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.128
[E8 “ETRf+-A=1-A “ETRFt-A+-RZ
ZE-REtZACTR
Suppliers 21/12/2005 - - - 21,500,000 - - 21,500,000 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.128
e “ETRE+-A=t-8 “FEREt-A-t-B%
“3-Rf+-A=1R
Others 15/04 /2004 -23 /08 /2004 34,380,000 (30,942,000) 1,498,615 - - - 4,936,615 15/04/2004-22/06/2014  0.7-0.73
ify “IIMEMATERE “TIMEMATREE
“EEMENAZTZR “E-mERAZTZR
24/08/2004-31/12/2004 10,640,000 (9,576,000) 463,795 - - - 1,521,795 24./08/2004-24/06/ 2014 0.54
“ETMEN\AZTRAZ “ZIMENA= AR
“3IME+-A=1-A ZE-MERAZTRA
21/12/2005 - - - 24,840,000 - - 24,840,000 21/12/2005-20/12 /2015 0.128
ZRERETACT-H ZEERETCACT-BE
ZE-REtZACTR
45,020,000 (40,518,000) 1,962,410 82,800,000 - - 89,264,410
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29. Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Company implemented an open offer of new Shares on the
basis of one offer share for every share held on record date (the
“Open Offer”) in August 2006. Adjustment was made on 12
September 2006 to the exercise price from HK$0.128 to
HK$0.11486 and to the number of options by increasing option to
subscribe for 9,393,801 Shares (the “Adjustment”) upon completion
of the Open Offer.

The details of the reclassification of the option to subscribe for
14,955,129 Shares and 1,000,000 Shares, totally option to
subscribe for 15,955,129 Shares from Directors to Others are shown
as follows:

(i) Option to subscribe for 9,227,159 Shares (after Adjustment)
was granted to Mr. Zu Yuan, a former executive Director on
21 December 2005. Mr. Zu resigned as an executive Director
on 9 May 2006 but remained as a director of a subsidiary of
the Company. His option to subscribe for Shares was
categorised as “Others” from 9 May 2006.

(i) Options to subscribe for 1,114,391 Shares (after Adjustment)
and 1,000,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Tung Tat Chiu
Michael, a former non-executive Director on 21 December
2005 and 20 October 2006 respectively. Mr. Tung resigned
as a non-executive Director on 22 November 2006. The
exercise period of his options extended for 12 months upon
Board approval. His options to subscribe for Shares were
categorised as “Others” from 22 November 2006.

(iif) Option to subscribe for 4,613,579 Shares (after Adjustment)
was granted to Mr. Sun Yeung Yeung, a former executive
Director on 21 December 2005. Mr. Sun resigned as an
executive Director on 27 November 2006. The exercise
period of his option extended for 12 months upon Board
approval. His option to subscribe for Shares was categorised
as “Other” from 27 November 2006. Mr. Sun exercised the
option to subscribe for 3,000,000 Shares during the year
ended 31 March 2007.

Options to subscribe for 82,940,000 Shares were granted on 20
October 2006. The closing price of the Shares immediate before
the date on which the options were granted was HK$0.246.

Options to subscribe for 24,771,955 Shares were exercised by the
employees, of which options to subscribe for 680,000 Shares were
exercised before the Adjustment. Therefore, there is no effect of
Open Offer in respect of the options to subscribe for 680,000 Shares.
The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$0.240.

There is no vesting period for the options.

No options were cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2007
(2006: Nil).

29.
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REZZETRF+—AZ T AFEIENT
HE o NEREESHER - HEBERETT
FHIER =@ A - HRBERM 2 BE
B-_TT A F+—A-+-BEREAR
[EApb] o
iy RZTTRF+=—A=+—08 AITE
EZEG %k EEFRE4,613,57900 A% D
(FAEE) ZBRE - BAEEERZTEN
F+—A-++LHBINTES - RERS
EREIAER  HERBETEHER+=
AR - HRERGOZERES ST F
+— A=t tHREREAHM] - FRELE
REBE—ZTTLF=A=1+—HILFETT
{2 7 #% 3,000,0008% B 17 2 FE AR A ©
() R-ZTTNE+ A=+ A% H72882,940,0008%
B 2 BE AR AE - B BEARER I B BIAT 2 IR1D UK
& A0.246/8 7T °
(d) SRE24,771,955 IR 19 2 BERRE B R B 1THE -
H R R 680,0000% B 17 2 8 AR M S = AT 1T
ﬁ At - 52 BE680,0000% A% 17 2 B A e 13 4
ARBEZFE - R ZEBERETE A Z
DNt /R0.2407% 7T ©
) BEBhETESEL-
(f) HE-_SZ+F=-A=+—BILFENMETH
BRECTEEAFE:T) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9) The fair values of the options granted on the grant date are as

follows:

B %55 2k 3R T =t

For the year ended 31 March 2007 #HZ=ZFL+F=A=+—HIFE

29. FERHEAHE
fia: : (4)
(@ EEEBREREHABIATEMT

[ 20/10/2006 )

Estimated fair values of the options granted

ERMBRE (A5 AT E

21/12 /2005
ZEEARE —ETRE
+HAZ+H F=R=aF=0E

HK$ HK$
BT PETT
0.0917 0.0357

The fair values were calculated using The Binomial Option-Pricing
Model (2006: The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model). The inputs

into the models were as follows:-

NFEDFA-AXEEREEER (CETRX
Ffahn —FRMERRTEEN)HE - Z
ERAMEAZEBENAT :

2007

2006

—EFTLE TN
Binomial Black-Scholes
Option-Pricing Option Pricing
Model Model
ZEXEERE | MHR — SR
Model B EEEX BEEEEEER
Share price on grant date ®E AR RE HKS$# 5T0.241 HK$7% 7£0.128
Exercise price 1B HK$# jt.242 HK$#7C0.128
Expected volatility T8 HRR IR 78.28% 44.67%
Expected life T8 HA 4 5 10 years 2 years &
Risk-free rate R R b & 4.002% 3.98%
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR B Mk 2 R 0% 0%
Suboptimal factor RERAZ 1.5 -

Expected volatility was estimated by the annualised standard
deviations of the continuously compounded rates of return on the
Company’s share prices.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$7,606,000 (2006:
HK$2,956,000) for the year ended 31 March 2007 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

Upon the share consolidation became effective on 26 September
2005, every 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each consolidated into
1 ordinary share of HK$0.1 each.

—/

REARBREZ KPR A EHE 7 REZE -
BINAEEAL - AR TREINIE -

AEERBE_ZTELF=A=+—HLFER
AR AR H 2 B AR R 7 7 48 5 52 7,606,00078 7T
(ZZZRF : 2,956,000 7T)

(h) BRHEHE-SZTRFNA - T/RAERE
F10REREEC.OIB T EBE - EAH A1
REFREEAEB T KB °

L0 %35 2002/9002 Hodey [enuuy
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30. Commitments 30. #KiE
(a) Capital commitments () BEARAE
Group
AERE
2007 2006
=33 oF -3 —TTREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted for but 2 F] 4B AR B IS MK FE 2
not provided in the financial statements & 4ANB 52
— Capital contribution to — M—ENEBENE AT
a wholly foreign owned Z &
subsidiary 780 -
— Acquisition of a subsidiary — WE—FEKHE AR - 8,860
780 8,860

(b) Commitments under operating leases

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
outstanding minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

MEHE AR
NEHE - AEEBETITHEEERE
ZERKERZERERFRAT :

Group
£3 L
f 2007 2006
—EELE “EEAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ER FHET
Within one year —F R 2,116 1,292
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEERFNA 309 1,891
2,425 3,183

The Company had no significant future lease payments at
both balance sheet dates.

MNEFER - AR B WEEEARRKAE
B -



31. Related Party Transactions
@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. AHEALR S

Transactions with related parties (@ BHEEALRS
The following is a summary of significant related party FRN - EREHEEATRSBMNAT ¢
transactions during the year.
Group
&
2007 2006
oS g 3 ZETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
Sales of automotive compressors to 4% /T H B4R # T
a related company —EBEER A () 2,188 =
Salaries and retirement benefits XN TEREALZ
schemes contributions paid to e MR RET
related parties FTEIH R (ii) 4,455 138
Rental expenses paid to a related ST —HEEAFZ
company HeXZH (iii) — 7
Fixed assets purchased from H—REHEEALEAZ
a related party EEE (iv) - 250
Management fee income received W B —HRAERQF 2
from a related company EREEH (v) - 150
Note: B 5
0] Sales of automotive compressors to a related company on i) HEREREH T —HEERR RS
mutually agreed terms by respective parties. [ & Z ARFRHEAT ©
(ii) Salaries and retirement benefits schemes contributions paid (ii) mBERBARERzE@EATI NS
to related parties for their employments with subsidiaries. RRIRAEFIFT B LK -
(iii) Rental expenses paid to a related company on normal (i)  E—BEEER—BEEARZN A
commercial terms. i
(iv)  Fixed assets were purchased from a related party on normal vy BRBREEERA—BEAEALTEAER
commercial terms. EEE °
(v) Management fee income received from a related company (v) BT 2 — MRS B —EEEARZ
for general services provided. EEEA -
Key management personnel compensation b) FEEEBABME

Emoluments of key management personnel are disclosed
in Note 14 to the financial statements.

TEEEAB MR BRRMEE 145

=
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32. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

On 13 July 2007, the Company served a notice to Jiangsu Songlin
Automobile Parts Co., Ltd. confirming the termination of the
negotiation of the terms and conditions of the formal agreement
in relation to the proposed subscription at a consideration of

approximately HK$63 million.

33. Comparative Figures

As explained in Note 6, the Group discontinued its operation in
the trading of electronic components business, the accounting
treatment and presentation in the financial statements of last
financial year has been restated to comply with the relevant
requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative figures have been

reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

34. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board on 27July 2007.

31.

32.

33.

HEHEER
R-BBLFLA+ZA - ARATHBNS
BTHHARADNELBN - WELIRUG
63,000,000/ T (B 2 4 R IA T IE 2\ 1 16
B A -

ttEgEF

EmifsEert  AEEERIEEEELEFEMH
BEER  SstRER E—EMBFEHBRER
2 BFERBABREERES - At - BNA
REEZERAA  BETURBEFEENE -

it B R R
MERREN TR LFLA-TLAGESE
o R AR T -



